
1 

Local Area/Contact V P I 

Atlantic 
Fran Kuhn X 
Marian Woodson (ALT) 
Bergen 
Tammy Molinelli X 
Carol Polack (ALT) 
Lynda Wolf X 
Robert Espinosa X 
Burlington 
Zahirah Sabir X 
Barbara Weir X 
Kelly West X 
Camden 
Frank Cirii X 
Nidia Sinclair (ALT) 
Jeff Swartz X 
Leslie Williams X 
Cumberland/Salem/Cape May 
Terri Bryan (ALT) 
Jamie Gomez (ALT) 
Tom Halligan (ALT) 
Kathy Lockbaum X 
Allison Spinelli X 
Amy Ronketty (ALT) 
Essex 
Julius Montford X 
Jobi Odeneye (ALT) X 
Janine Schaeffer (ALT) 
Josette VanDyke (ALT) 
Howard Weiss X 
Gloucester 
Tom Bianco 
Eileen Gallo (ALT) X 
Michelle Shirley X 
Greater Raritan 
Paul Grzella X 
Monica Mulligan X 
Christopher Peake (ALT) 
Hudson 
Leidy Ramirez X 
Deanine Muniz (ALT) X 
Timothy Sheridan X 
Keri Sullivan 
Jersey City 
Katrice Thomas 

Local Area/Contact V P I 

Mercer County 
Kendra Lee X 
Virgen Velez X 
Middlesex County 
Claudia Dorsch (ALT) 
Kevin Kurdziel X 
Diane Seavers X 
Monmouth County 
Lawrence Sternbach X 
Yolanda Taylor X 
Morris/Sussex/Warren 
Jane Armstrong 
Victoria Bollhardt X 
Diane Jainarine (ALT) 
Kelly O’Neill McGuire (ALT) 
Beth Rodgers (ALT) 
Manuela Schuster (ALT) 
Newark 
Eva Anochi (ALT) X 
Karen Gaylord X 
Catresa McGhee for Orlando 
Mingo (ALT) 

X 

Davetta Lane Thurman X 
Ocean 
Candy Fortier X 
Patricia Leahey X 
Kim Liguori (ALT) X 
Cheryl Meyer X 
Leandra Santos (ALT) 
Passaic County 
Davidene Alpart X 
Duwan Bogert X 
Chrystal Cleaves (ALT) 
Sofia Comas-Phillips (ALT) 
Lauren Murphy 
Velanae Rojas (ALT) 
Union 
Perle Almeida X 
Debbie-Ann Anderson (ALT) 
Antonio Rivera 
Guests 
Chris Anderson,  USWA X 
Kelly Finzer, LinkedIn X 
Jake Hirsch-Allen X 

P = Attended by phone; V = Attended virtually 
I = Attended in person; Blank= Not present

GSETA Minutes 
1.12.22 



2 

Welcome and Introductions 
Kevin Kurdziel called the virtual meeting to order at 10:04AM and welcomed the membership to the January meeting. 

Attendance was taken via the chat feature of Zoom by Monica Mulligan. 

Correspondence 
Monica Mulligan reported on two pieces of correspondence: 

Yolanda Taylor sent a thank you note for the donation GSETA made in hoor of her mother (attached). The note was 
read aloud to the group. 

GSETA received notification from the Atlantic County Prosecutor’s Office that indicated Rhonda Lowery had been placed 
into the Pre-Trial Intervention (PTI) program (see attached). The letter was read aloud to the group. Kevin Kurdziel  indicated 
that GSETA officially objected to this sentence prior to the disposition, but the Judge felt it was the appropriate outcome. 
She has been ordered to pay $25.00 restitution per month. If she completes the terms of PTI, the charges will be dismissed. 
There was robust discussion among members about this outcome and the length of time it will take her to pay back the 
stolen funds. There are options to garnish wages once she starts to receive her pension. There may also be a civil judgement 
filed if she does not pay her restitution as ordered. Kevin and/or Allison Spinelli will follow up with the Atlantic County 
Victim-Witness Unit to discuss these options.  

Approval of the December 8, 2021 Minutes 
The minutes of the December 8th GSETA meeting were presented by Monica Mulligan. 

Fran Kuhn made a motion approve the December minutes as presented. Larry Sternbach seconded the motion. There were 
no objections or abstentions. The motion was approved.  

Treasurer’s Report – December 
Leslie Williams presented the December Treasurer’s Report (attached). She indicated that the bank reconciliations and 
bank statements and have been provided to the Executive Committee. Leslie reported that as of December 31, 2021, 
there was an outstanding Accounts Receivable (A/R) balance of $61,188.00. The A/R Aging report shows was is still 
outstanding as of December 31st. Leslie indicated that she did receive a check from NJDOL for conference registration in 
the amount of $21,150 which would decrease the outstanding balance.  

Jeff Swartz made a motion approve the December Treasurer’s Reports as presented. Howard Weiss seconded the motion. 
There were no objections or abstentions. The motion was approved.  

Guest Speaker 
Kevin Kurdziel indicated that he was going to move the agenda around to allow our guest speaker to present. Kevin 
introduced Chris Anderson, Executive Director of USWA. Kevin indicated that this presentation from Chris will help us to 
better understand how what is happening at the national level will impact us at the state and local level.  

Chris Anderson indicated that USWA was started about six or seven years ago and brings together about 20 states to work 
collectively on federal level policy that impacts workforce development and workforce development associations. Chris 
indicated that he is a non-partisan lobbyist who worked in Washington DC during WIOA reauthorization. He feels that local 
workforce development boards and associations have the most insight on what is happening “on the streets” and 
information from this association would be invaluable.  



3 

Chris reported that the Build Back Better Act had a proposal for an historic investment in workforce development. The 
original bill was for a total of $1.7T with $100B earmarked for workforce development. This has now been negotiated down 
to $40B but has still not been approved. His organization will continue to work with the White House and other leadership 
on moving this forward. Senator Menendez and Senator Booker have both been strong supporters of this investment. Issues 
in the act such as funding for childcare, universal pre-K and free community college connect with workforce development. 
Chris suggested that there should be a focus on connecting with the NJ delegation to ensure that investment in workforce 
development remains in the package. This includes letters of support from local elected officials, associations like GSETA 
and letters to those sitting on  the appropriations committee. Chris indicates that the federal government is funded through 
February 18th and that we are still operating under a temporary federal budget.  There seems to still be an increase in 
funding for workforce development in the budget right now.  USWA has been very involved in meetings with elected 
officials, though there have been many changes in staff in these offices, creating some challenges. He hopes to make more 
progress in 2023 when WIOA will likely be up for reauthorization - after midterm elections. A new director of ETA should be 
confirmed in the next few months. 

Kevin Kurdziel indicated that the affiliation between USWA and GSETA is timely because GSETA is looking to shift the 
organization in a policy focused direction.  

Kevin Kurdziel asked about how local areas can advocate for bringing rescue plan money to their local areas. Chris indicated 
that best practices are difficult to gauge right now because funding took time almost a year to trickle down to the local level 
and many areas are still in the process of getting programs up and running.  As a result, best practices are still evolving. 
Once area to watch would Prince Georges County in Maryland that has invested $175M from the rescue plan to into its 
workforce development system. New York did something similar. Those that have been most successful with securing funds 
have been those that have direct lines to state officials who will allocated these funds into WIOA programs.  

Kevin Kurdziel indicated that staying connected with USWA will help GSETA set the tone for GSETA and hep membership 
understand how federal legislation this impacts us locally.  

Jake Hirsch, who runs workforce development for LinkedIn across North America asked about how ARP is being rolled out 
across the county and how this information may help this group. Chris indicated that there was a very inconsistent and 
disjointed rollout of these funds across state lines. There is  no national story about how these rescue dollars are being used. 
In the President’s original plan, infrastructure and workforce development were together hand in hand. However, in the 
Senate, these two things were separated. So now that there is a plan for infrastructure. Now that physical infrastructure 
funding is in place, the question of the workforce connection – who will build this infrastructure? – comes in. Renewable 
energy and green jobs are plentiful, but we need the fiscal investment to support economic recovery. Sector partnerships 
are important. On the workforce development side, partnerships already exist. Funding is needed to accelerate this work 
on the local level. Jake asked if there are other states that are successfully leveraging these funds. Chris indicated he will 
gather this information and pass it along to Kevin to share with membership.  

Pat Leahy asked about our role and where can we have the biggest impact.  Chris indicated that there must be some 
simplification. There is over 550 workforce development boards across the nation.  There is no unified message. Chris 
indicated that we need to identify our role in this ecosystem. Community colleges, employers and Chamber of Commerce 
all indicate that they work on workforce development.  Workforce Development Boards bring these entities together but 
are not always recognized this way. He suggests developing a unified message about what workforce development boards 
do and the value that they bring.  

Virgen Velez asked on whom should we focus our energies. Chris indicated that in New Jersey, Donald Norcross and Mickey 
Sherrill are on Education and Labor committees and that gives them a better base of knowledge of what we do. They also 
have staff focused on these issues. Efforts to connect with them would be beneficial. Ms. Coleman on the Appropriation 
Committee and is another elected official we should be connected to.  



4 

Tammy Molinelli asked to what extent can there be national outreach to employers to direct them to workforce 
development boards as a trusted advisor in the community. Chris indicated working with local chambers of commerce 
members is very important, as they have connection to local businesses as well as the national chamber. Chris also 
suggested inviting local House members and/or their staff to board meetings and job centers so that they can see what is 
happening locally. Chris indicated that it would also be helpful is if workforce development boards had measurements for 
performance on its business engagement to use to promote itself.  

Kevin thanked Chris for this presentation and indicated that this information will be helpful in strategic planning. Kevin 
indicated that knowing what is happening at the federal level helps inform local impacts.  

President’s Report 
Kevin Kurdziel spoke to membership about the impacts of covid over the last two years including the current surge in cases 
we are experiencing. He indicated that we have been through a time of record high unemployment and the great 
resignation. The needs of both employers and job seekers have changed. He gives credit to everyone for the switch to virtual 
platforms. He indicated that GSETA is well positioned to share best practices with local areas and to look at data to see what 
is really happening with the workforce.  

Kevin talked to the group about taking GSETA in a new direction by developing an updated strategic plan for GSETA. The 
organization will be focused on emerging trends and provide unified, solution-based responses to issues as they arise. While 
there may never be full agreement between members, he hopes to build consensus.  

Kevin informed the group that he signed the MOU with New Jersey Consortium of Community Colleges (NJCCC) to enhance 
relationships with community colleges at the local level as well as to better collaborate with NJCCC in addressing the needs 
of businesses and job seekers. He will provide this document to Monica Mulligan to send out to the membership. This 
document does not indicate that community colleges will be a preferred provider. This agreement speaks to leveraging 
funds when appropriate to do so.  Kevin will be meeting with the presidents of the community colleges soon to explain what 
we can offer to them.   

Kevin reported that on Monday, 1/10/22, he met with John Donnadio, Executive Director of NJAC, to talk about GSETA 
and what it does as an organization and what local boards to at the local level. John explained more about what 
his organizations does. Kevin indicated that he was invited to present at an upcoming NJAC workshop on the 
value of workforce development boards.  

Kevin let membership know that on February 3rd, the Executive Committee will be meeting virtually with Robert 
Asaro-Angelo and his team to re-institute quarterly meeting with NJDOL. Kevin wants to discuss with him with 
the lack of statewide branding of the One Stops/American Job Centers.  Kevin indicates that having consistent 
messaging will help engage businesses and job seekers.  

Tammy suggested that working with a large employer and walking them through the OJT process could be a big 
win and a way to showcase what our system can successfully do for businesses and job seekers. Kevin indicated 
that RWJ may be an employer to work with on this type of an initiative.  

NJDOL OJT Training 
Kevin reported that each local area will be receiving an allocation of OJT funds from NJDOL. NJDOL has hired EDSI to do 
training on the use of these funds and the GSETA Institute will be the vehicle through which these trainings are coordinated.  
This shows that the state is looking at GSETA as the premiere training provider when it comes to workforce development.   



5 
 

Virtual Conference 
Kevin Kurdziel reported that the 2022 virtual GSETA conference was very successful in terms of programming and profit. 
The Conference Committee has had significant conversations about how to move forward for next year given the current 
health climate due to COVID-19: virtual vs. in person event.  There were committee members on both sides. As GSETA  
President, Kevin indicated that from a risk perspective, it seems more appropriate to have the 2022 conference held 
virtually. He does not want GSETA to lose money in the form of a deposit if an in-person event needs to be cancelled or to 
loss of revenue from lack of registrants. The income from the conference will allow us to further build out the GSETA 
Institute as well as potentially hire and Executive Director.  Kevin is making the recommendation to the Conference 
Committee that the event remain virtual for 2022.  There was a consensus from the membership based upon on-screen 
“thumbs up” and absence of comments after Kevin asked for feedback from membership. Karen Gaylord asked that the 
date for the GSETA Conference not conflict with the League of Municipalities conference, as it conflicted in 2021. Kevin 
indicated the date will likely be in September or October and not November,  when the League has its conference.   
 
Strategic Plan 
Kevin indicated that the Executive Committee is going to start shaping the GSETA Strategic Plan at its monthly meetings. 
Kevin asked membership to volunteer for one of the subcommittees that will be set up to work on the strategic plan. Some 
of the areas to focus on will be public policy/advocacy, organizational operations, marketing and branding, fundraising and 
fiscal sustainability and identifying internal and external stakeholders. Kevin hopes to have these committees hammered 
out in the next month. Once that is completed, Monica Mulligan will send out information about the committees with an 
ask for volunteers. While there is no definite timeline set, Kevin is hoping that this planning process will be completed by 
the end of 2022.  
 
Committee Updates:   
 
Executive Committee - Kevin Kurdziel reported that this committee is meeting monthly on the Wednesday before each full 
GSETA membership meeting.  
 
Monitoring Committee – Yolanda Taylor reported that the next meeting is scheduled for January 20, 2022 at 10AM. 
 
MIS Committee – Kevin Kurdziel indicated that Diane Seavers is on vacation today and that then next meeting is scheduled 
for January 26, 2022 at 10AM.  
 
Operations Committee - Fran Kuhn reported that the committee met on January 4, 2022. The committee talked about TEGL 
19-16 on Adult eligibility and incumbent worker training. The NJDOL technical assistance labs were held on January 11, 
2022. John Biccica spoke to the committee about registered apprenticeship. The committee also spoke about how in-house 
CDL training is no longer allowable. The committee talked about the great resignation and how the changing needs of job 
seekers are impacting employers. Fran suggested an ad-hoc committee be formed to look at how we can work with 
employers to assist them in drawing in more candidates for open positions. Fran promoted the professional development 
opportunities coming up through the GSETA Institute including a new series of workshops entitled Wellness Wednesdays.  
Th e next meeting is scheduled for February 7,, 2022 at 10AM.  
 
Fiscal Committee: Allison Spinelli reported that the next meeting date will be established shortly.  
 
Youth Committee: Kendra Lee reported that the next meeting is scheduled for February 7, 2022 at 3PM. She also shared 
that the Summer Youth Employment Program RFP is now available. Proposals are due on February 4, 2022. There is $3.9M 
available. The wage for youth is $13.50 per hour.  
 
Professional Development: Kevin indicated Fran Kuhn promoted the programming of the GSETA Institute and reminded 
everyone that they will also be involved in the OJT Training.  



6 
 

 
 
 
 
Open Discussion  
Kevin Kurdziel reported NJ Anchor is looking to hire a project manager to manage a new grant working with a healthcare 
provider.  Kevin indicated that is anyone knows someone looking for this type of contracting work ($40,000 for 20 -30 hours 
a week) to please send the name to him and he will forward that information to Assemblyman Chris DePhillips office.   
 
Fran Kuhn indicated that NJ OJT allocations are now available in SAGE. 
 
Adjournment:  
Allison Spinelli made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Leslie Williams seconded it. There were no objections or 
abstentions. The motion was approved. The meeting was adjourned at 12:03PM. 
 
The next GSETA meeting is scheduled for February 9, 2022 at 10:00AM via Zoom.
 




































	1.12.22 Minutes
	Yolanda's Note
	Prosecutor Letter
	Treasurer's report

